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Berry Hill, a large tract near the North Carolina state lime in southwest Pittsylvani
County, includes a large, frame farmhouse built in several sections between the early '
nineteenth century and the early twentieth century, and a notable group of twenty log !
or frame outbuildings reflecting the growth of the farm over 160 years.

The original section of the main house consists of a two-story, three-bay structure
connected by a hyphen to a story-and-a-half wing set perpendicular to the main block.

In its original form Berry Hill was a frame version of the brick house, Little Cherry-
stone, also in Pittsylvania County. Projecting from the west end of the original wing,
also connected by a hyphen, is a one-story, single-cell wing probably built ca. 1840-50,
To the east of the original house, enveloping its original front wall and the hyphen,

is a large, two-story structure built ca.’ 1910 with a shallow gambrel roof with bell-
cast eaves. -A one-story porch -shelters the east and north sides of the 1910 addition.

- The mineteenth~century sections of ‘the house are vlad with beaded weatherboards;
plain weatherboards are useduon the 1910 wing —-All secticns-are covered with standing-
seam sheet metal. © . R I B .- . .

The two- story sectlon of the orlglnal house has nine-over-nine sash on the first
floor and six-over-nine sash on the second, with louvred blinds used throughout. The
gable roof is embellished at the eaves with a modillion cornice and there is a Flemish-
bond exterior end chimney with stepped weatherings. A lead downspout dated 1843 survives
on this section. P

The hyphen was rebuilt as a two-story structure in the 1910 campaign. The oxigimal } -
wing has six-over-nine and nine-over-nine sash, louvred blinds and modern slat blinds. '
There are two pedimented dormers on each slope of the roof, and a modillion cormice at
the eaves. The Flemish-bond chimneys are not matched, The west chimney has two sets
of stepped weatherings and a flared corbelled cap; that on the east end has a square
uncapped stack and a single set of stepped weatherings. There is an original lean-to
along the south side. The west end was enclosed originally; the east end formerly
served as a recessed portico, but was enclosed after 1968.

The mid-nineteenth~century wing is devoid of any ornament except for a distyle
porch., The wing is two bays wide and has six~over~six sash and a stone exterior end
chimney at the west.

The 1910 wing has one-over-one and two-over-two sash and louvred blinds. Its porch
is supported on a series of unfluted Roman Doric columns. An interior brick chimney
surmounts it,

The plan of Berry Hill is less complex than the massing. The original house
consisted of a single-pile, side-hall plan main block, a small hyphen, and a two-room,
hall-parlor type wing with an additional lean-to room. There was a single chamber in
the mid-nineteenth-century wing. The 1910 addition was constructed with two plain
gquare rooms joined to the main block by removing walls in the original side passage
and hyphen to combine them with an entrance passage in the new wing to form an L-shaped
living hall after the Shingle style and Colonial Revival fashions,.

The original parlor remains the most formal room in the house, In it is a handsome
mantel consisting of a reeded architrave surround and an unsupported shelf decorated
with flutes and a cable molding. The mantel retains its striking gold-colored marble-
izing. A plain pedestal chair rail and a picture molding are carried around the rcom.

The living hall is decorated in the Colonial Revival manner with woodwork closely
resembling the original trim. A recessed panel wainscot encircles the odd-shaped
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. Located, in southwestern Pittsylvania County near. the North Caroclima border,
Berry Hill, with its.rambling dwelling house and twenty outbuildings, is a remarkably
complete Southside Virginia.plantation.complex. The mumber of outbuildings is un-
usually high even for an area where many small ocutbuildings were standard for-farms.
The main house with its several additions reflects the nine generations of occupancy
by the Perkins-Wilson-Hairston-Sims family who have owned the property since the 1760s,
The singular dwelling evolved over a century from a Federal farmhouse to a jumble of
wings, chimneys, porches and roofs, the latest main section of which was erected ca.
1910, Few Virginia farmsteads have dwelling houses or outbuilding collections that
can compare in complexity.

Nicholas Perkins, a Justice of the Peace for Halifax County (of which Pittsylvania
County was then a part), was the first of his name to acquire land ipn the Berry Hill
area. When he died in 1762 his son  Peter, later a Revolutionary War soldier, inherited
the land which is now Berry Hill. The younger Perkins continued to accumulate land in
the area. In 1800, he made a gift of 640 acres, the present Berry Hill property, to
his son Nicholas Junior, who sold the tract, then 700% acres (the present size of the
farm) to his first cousin Peter Wilson ten years later. By 1812, the property appeared
in the tax books as Berry Hill. Architectural evidence suggests that Wilson developed
the property, and that the present house was begun at that time.

Wilson was dead by 1814 and in 1819 Berry Hill passed to Robert Hairston, the
brother-in-law of Wilson's daughter. Hairston and his widow owned the plantation until
1881 when it was bequeathed to a niece, Ruth Hairston, the great-granddaughter of Peter
Wilson., By 1898 Ruth Hairston had married Albert Varley Sims; their descendants continue
to own the farm. Berry Hill was apparently a tenant farm from the time young Ruth
Hairston, who lived in nearby Henry County, inherited it in 1881, Early in the present
century it became a summer home for the Sims family and continued to serve as one until
1966 when Robert V. Sims, the present owner, inherited the property and established his
residence there,
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room to give it visual unity, and a Federal -type mantel modeled on the parlor
mantel embellishes the projecting chimney breast. It has an architrave surrourd
and unsupported shelf as in the parlor, and reeding on the surround and the shelf,
An open-string stair, probably dating from the 1910 reworking, rises in the
position of the original stair in the former passage.

' In the west room of the original wing is a mantel consisting of an un~
supported shelf and an architrave surround with two recessed panels in the frieze.
Recessed panel wainscoting with a pedestal chair rail is used in this room as it~
is in the smaller east room where, however, the mantel is a later Greek Revival
one with plain pilasters and frieze and an unmolded shelf.

The mid-nineteenth-century wing also has a plain Greek Revival mantel with
unembellished pilasters and frieze, but this one retains original black-and-gold
marbleizing. 1In the corner rises an L-plan open string stair with a square
newel, round banister, and two rectangular balusters to a tread., The exterior
door is grained.

The two large rooms in the 1910 wing are undecorated.

Berry Hill possesses an unusually large collection of outbuildings. Forming
a courtyard behind the house are (from east to west) the former kitchen/laundry,
a one-story frame building, three bays wide, with a central brick chimmey and
a rear lean-to; the 'lumber sed, ' a single-story frame building with one
opening in each facade; the smokehouse, a gable-roofed frame structure with an
off-center door; and the dairy, of the same size and form as the smokehouse,
except that there is a band of S-shaped vents at the eaves level on the front
and the rear.

Behind these to the south are a small gable-roofed cabin built of square-
notched logs, with a stone interior end chimney and a new roof structure. Next
to it is a chicken house of the same size and form as the smokehouse. It was
not always a chicken house -- it once had a chimney--but it is in too dilapidated
a condition to determine its original functiom.

Southwest of the house is a V-notched log slave house with a stone end
chimney at one end and a frame lean-to at the other. Beyond it is a modern
metal equipment shed.

To the northeast of the house are a twentieth-century frame building and
the ruins of a stone springhouse. Down the hill beyond these are (from west to
east) a square-notched log crib with a frame second story, a large transverse
erib, a square-notched log stable, a diamond-notched crib, a modern concrete
block barn which replaces a frame granary, a twentieth-century, square-notched
log shed, and a twentieth-century frame outhouse,

There is a large, walled garden with a nineteenth-century gazebo west of
the house, and a family cemetery beyond that.

DTU
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